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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRJCT COURT 

FOR TIlE NORTI-rERN DI5TRICf OF CALIFORNIA 

1lle United Stales ofAmerica, by authority ,,(the Anomey General of 

United States and through the undersigned attorneys, acting at the request 

fthe Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency " 
" (hereafter ~U.S. EPA ~ or ~EPA~), files this complaint and alleges as follows: 

" 

" I------"=="----~ 

" 

UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA, 

Plaintiffs. 

V. 

COLUMBUS 
MANlJFACTURING, INC. 

Defendant 

~\!12 
CIVIL ACTION NO. __ 

COMPLAINT 
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NATURE OF THE ACTION 

I. This is a civil action for penalties and injunctive reliefagainst 

olumbus Manufacturing. Inc. ("Defeodanf') for violations of Seclion 

12(r)(l) lUId 112(r)(7) ofme Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 74 I2(r)( I) and 

412(r)(7), Sel.:tion 103 ofme Comprehensive Environmental Response, 

pensation and Liability Act tCERCLAM), 42 U.S.c. § 9603, and/or 

ttom 304 and 312 ofthc: Emergency Preparedness and Community Righl­

o-Know Act ("EPCRA M 

), 42 U.S.C. §§ 11004 and 11022, al Defendant's 

wo meat pnxessing facilities located in South San Francisco and Hayward. 

Illifomia. 

JURISDICTION AND YINUE 

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject mailer of this action,
 

nd Ihe Defendants, pursuant to Section [13(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C.
 

74l3(b), Section I 09(c) ofCERCLA, 42 U.s.c. § 9609(c), Seclion
 

25(b)(3) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § II045(b)(3) IUtd under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 

1345 and 1355. 

3. Venue is proper in this District under Seclion 113(b) of the Clean 

'r Act. 42 U.s.c. § 7413(b). Seclion 1000c)ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609 

c), Section 325(b)(3)ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(3) and 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1391(b) and (c) and 1395(a), because the Defendanl does business in. 

d these claims arose within. this judicial district. 

4. l"otice of commencemenl orthis action has been gh'en 10 the State 

rCalifornia pur'Suanl to Section IIJ(b) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.c. 

7413(b).
 

PARTI£'s
 

6. Plaintiff is the Uniled Stales of America, acting OIl the request of 

he EPA. an agency of the United States. 

7. Defendant is a corporalion organized under the laws of the State 

fCalifornia, and is doing business in this judicial district. 

,
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GENERAL ALI.EGATIONS 

2 8. At all relev3nltirnes Defendant owned and operaled a meat 

) essing facility in South San Fmncisco at 493 Forbes Boulevard, San 

~ iateo County, ('"Forbes Facility") and in Hayward at 3190 Corporate Place, 

S lameda County, California [-lIayward Facility"Xloinlly referred 10 as "the 

6 acilities"). 

7	 9. At all relevant times Defendant maintained refrigeration systems at 

of the Facilities and those systems utilized anhydrous ammonia. 

10. On February 17,2009, the Forbes Facility experienced a 217 

nd release of anhydrous ammonia from its ammonia refrigeration system. 

II e release was eaused by corroded copper/brass fittings conne<:ting stainless 

t2 tcel tubing to II pressure control switch. 

I) II. After the February 2009 releasc, Defendant relocated significant 

14 nions of its ammonia refrigeration system to the roof from the inside of the 

IS ·orbes Facility. During this project, Defendant failed to properly label 

16 ertain piping and did not undertak.e a management ofchange analysis 

11 "MOC") or conduct a pre-startup safety review ("PSSR") prior to the 

" ntroduction of anhydrous ammonia into the relocated components. 

19 12. On August 28, 2009, Defendant experienced a second accidental 

20 lease ofanhydrous ammonia from the roof of its Forbes Facility. At least 

21 00 pounds of anhydrous ammonia were released after a hydrostatic pressure 

n uildup in a valve group (-Vah'e Group" 19") caused the failure of an access 

II ange of the stnliner at the inlet to the evaporator pressure regulator. This 

24 ailure was caused by a design flaw in the valve group coofigumtion. The 

2S trainer should have ~ placed in parallel ""ilh the adjacent component but 

26 nstead was placed in a series configuration. 

" 
" 

,
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13. After the aM)'drous ammonia was released through the access 

ange orthe strainer on Valve Group i 19, a contractor or Derendant applied 

'liter to the liquid ammonia in an attempt 10 mitigate the release. !'-Iowever, 

is had the efT«t or exacerbating and increasing the vapor cloud released to 

e atmosphere. 

14. The gaseous cloud of anhydrous ammonia traveled from the 

omes Facility to Ihe adjacenl buildings owned by Genentcch,lnc. At least 

ventcen G~nlech emplo)'ees "ere senllo local hospilals or clinics. One 

fthose employees was lrapped in the ammonia vapor cloud as he was 

'llmling up the engine ofa Genentech bus prior to slaJting his moming 

ound or employee commUler pick.ups. The bus driver remained hospilalized 

or four days to treal his injuries. 

IS. The releases of anhydrous ammonia rrom the Forbes Facility on 

ebroa!)' t7, 2009 and August 28, 2009 were both above the reportable 

uantily or 100 pounds pursuant to 40. C.F.R. § 302.4. Yet, Defendant failed 

n bolh instances to notify the National Response Cenler ("NRC'), or the 

tate Emergency Response Commillcc ("SERe") ror over 5 hours. 

!'-'IRSI' CLAIM fOR RELIEF 
SECTION 112{r)(l) OF THE CLEAN AIR ACT 

16. Paragraphs 1·15 are incorporated herein by reren:nce. 

17. Section 112(rXI} orlbe CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(rX I}, mandates 

hree distinct general duty or care requirements for owners lind operators or 

tntionary sources producing. processing, handling or storing specific 

azardous subSlances. including extremely hazardous substances. In 

rtinent part, Seclion 112(rXI) orthe eAA provides as follows: 

II shall be the objective of the regulations and Pr'9&J1lffis 
authorized under this sul:isection to prevent the accidental release and 
to minimize the consequences ofany such release of any subs.tance 
listed pursuant to panagraph O} or any other extremely hazardous 

•
 



substance. The O....Tler5 and operators of!t8tio~ sources producing, 
processing, handlin& or storing sIKh substances have a gmeral dUlv In, [he.same manner an(l (0 the same eXlent as Section 654 of Title 29129 
U..s.c. § 654)J to identifY hazards which fI!lI)' result fro.m such releases 

J 

, 
using appn>pJ:lale hazArcfassessmenllechmques, 10 desIgn and 
maintain a safe facilily taking such steps as are necessarY to pre\'ent 
releases, and to minimize the: consequencn ofaccidental releases 
which do occur., 

18. Anh)'drous ammonia is a listed extremely hazardous substance

• nder Section 112(r)(3) ofthc CAA. 42 U.S.c. § 7412(rXJ) and 40 C.f.R. 
7 

68.130. 
• 19. The Forbes Facility is a stationary source. "Stalionlll)' souree", 

eans, in relevant pan, "any buildings. structures, equipment. inslallations or 

" 'ubstance emitting stationary aClivities... from which an accidental release 

nay occur.~ Section 112(r)(2XC), 42 U.S.C. § 74 I2(r)(2)(C). " 
20. Defendant is an owner and operator of the Forbes Facility which " 

" landles, stores, and uses anhydrous ammonia. 

21. Defendant failed in its geneTliI dUly of care to identify ha1.ardS 

hich may result from an accidental release of anhydrous ammonia in that 

" 
" 
" ·hen it moved the refrigeration system to the roof of the Forbes Facility it 

" ailed to perform a MOC analysis or a PSSR. Both a MOC analysis and a 

SR an: the industry .standard for identifying hazards in a refrigeration " 
" en which has been reconfigured. If Ocfendant had undergone. MOC 

.1) sis or PSSR. it would have identified the design flaw of placing the " 
" trainer in a series configuration, and could have avoided the AugUSl 2009 

lease. 

22. Defendant failed in iu general duty to design and maintain a safe 

acilily .... hen it failed to use propcT materials in its ammonia refrigeralion 

" ·yslem al the Forbes Facility. The February 2009 ammonia release was 

·aused by the use ofincompalible materials. namely copper and/or brass in " 
" 
21 

,
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iping th,n is in direct conlllCt willi IlITlmonia. This is contrary to the indusuy 

because copper COlTOdes in lIIe presence oflllTlmonia. 

23. Defendant failed in its gene.,.1 duty ofc;Bre to minimize the 

onscquenc;es of the accidental release of anhydrous ammonia which 

curred on August 28. 2009, in that Defendant's contractor applied water 10 

e released liquid ammonia, thereby exacerbating the release and creating 

ann to the public;. Moreover, Defendant failed to infonn its neighbors, 

ncluding Genentech, Ine.• of the release. The only list of notifieation 

taets Defendant had at the Forbes Facility was inaCi::cssible during the 

lease and the telephone number Defendant had fOf Gcnenteeh. Inc. ""115 

ncorre<:t. Finally, Defendant had no audible or visual alann system outside 

fthe building to warn people when the release occurred. 

24. Section 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), as amended by 

28 U.S.C. § 2461 and 31 U.S.C. § 3701, provides that the Administrator of 

PA shalt. in the case of a person which is the owner or opemtor of a major 

tationary source, and may, in the case of any other person, whenever such 

n violates any requirement or prohibition of Subchapter I of the Act 

42 U.S.C, §§ 7401-7515). commence a civil actioo fOf injunctive relief and 

0 asseS5 and recO\'er a civil penalty of up to 527,500 per day fOf each such 

iolation. 

25. Under the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 

1990,28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by the Debt Collection Improvements 

ct of 1996 ("DCIA"), 3 I U.S.C. § 3701, and pursuant to EPA's Civil 

onetary Penalty Inflation AdjUStment Rule ("Inflation Adjustment Rule"), 

9 Fed. Rrg 7,121 (Feb. 13, 20(4) and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, 73 Ffti Reg. 

5,340 (Dec. II, 2008). promulgated pursuant the OCIA. Defendant is liable 

or assessment ofa c;ivil penalty of up to S27.500 per day for each violation 

•
 



occurred OIl or after JanUlU}' 31, 1997 through March 15, 2004, up to 

2 2,500 per day for each violation that occurred after March IS, 2004 

J hrough January 12, 2009, and up to $37,500 per day for each violation mat 

<4 curred after January 12, 2009. 

s 26. The defendant violated the generol duty of care under Section 

6 I t 2(r)( I) of the eAA every day it operated its refrigeration system with 

7 ncompatible materials, or without conducting any form of hazard 

I dentificalion or without adequately responding to a catastrophic release. 

9 SECQ,"m Cl.AIM FOR RELIEF 

" 

SECTION 103 OF CERCLA 

" 27. Paragraphs 1-15 are incorporated heTCin b). reference. 

28. Section 103 ofCERCLA requires any person in charge of a 

" acility "as soon as he has knowledge of any release. , ,of a hazardous 

" ubstance in quantities equal to or greater than those determined pursuant to 

" 
section 102 of CERCLA] to immediately notify the National Response 

ter." 42. U.S.C, § 9603(a). 

" 29. Anh}'drous ammonia is a listed hazardous substance with a 

" portable quantity ('"RQ") of 100 powKh. 40 C.f.R. § 302.4. 

" 30. The February 17, 2009 release of217 pounds of anh)'drous

" monia was a reportable release under Section 103 ofCERCLA, Howevu, 

fendant did not notify the NRC of this release for over 5 hours. " 
31. '!'be August 28, 2009 release of approximately 200 pounds of 

22 
nhydrous ammonia was a reportable release under Section 103 ofCERCLA. 

2J 
-lowevcr, again, Defendant did not notify the NRC of this release for over 

" 10 hours, 

" 
" 
2J 

" 

,
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32. Section 1000c) o(CERCLA provides as follows: 

TIle Presidmt may bring an action in the United Stales district 
coun for the apprQPriate aistricllo assess and collect a penally of not 
more than S2J.oorr per day for each day during which the violation (or 
failure or refusal) continues in the case of ... tll A violation aCthe 
notice requirements of section 960)(a/ of this tit e .... In the case of a 
second or subsequent violation (or rai ure or refusal), the amount of 
such p;:nalty may' be not more dian $75,000 for cadi day during which 
Ihe vIolation (or failure or refusal) continues. 

42 V.S.c. § 9606(c). 

33. Under the DeIA and the Inflalion Adjustment Rule, the $25,000 

r day penalty has been increased 10 S37,500 per day. and the $75,000 per 

ay penalty for subsequent violations has been increased to $107,500 per day 

nder Section 1000c) ofCERCLA as of January 2009, 

]4. Defendant is liable fora penalty of$37,5OO for its failure to 

imely notify the NRC on February 17, 2009, and is liable for a penally of 

107,500 for its failure to timely notify the NRC on August 28, 2009, of 

leases of hazardous substances above the reportable quantity. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
SEQ'JON 304 OF EPCRA 

35. PllnIgnlphs 1-1 S an: incorporated herein by reference, 

36, Section 304 ofEPCRA requires the O"'TlCf Of operator of a facility 

rhcre hazardous chemicals are produced. used, Of stored to immediately 

rovlde the Local Emergency Planning Committee ,LEPC") and State 

mergency Response Committee ("SERe"') with notice of releases of 

ERCLA haLaTdous substances or extremely hazardous substances in excess 

f reportable quantities. 

37. Anhydrous ammonia is listed as an extremely hazardous 

ubstance under EPCRA with an RQ of 100 pounds. 40 C.F.R. Part 355, 

ppendices A and B. 

• 

27 
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38. The February 17, 2009 release of2l7 pounds of anhydrous 

monia was a reportable release under Section 304 of EPCRA. However, 

'fendant did not noti!)' the California Emergency Management Agency, the 

ERC, of this release for over 5 hours. 

39. The August 28. 2009 release ofapproximately 200 pounds of 

nhydrous ammooia was a reportable release under Section 304 of EPCRA. 

1 -1owever, again, Defendant did not noti!), the SERC of this release for 

8 pproximately 7 hours. 

, 40. Section 325(b)(3) ofEPCRA provides as follows: 

"
 
"
 
"
 
"
 
"
 
" 

"
 
"
 

lbe Administrator may bring an action in the United States District 
court for the ap~ate district to uvc' and collect a pcTIlllty of flO( 

lllOfe that $25,UOO per day for eaeh day durin& which tJie vioratioo 
continues In the case of a violation ofilte ~ulrements ofsection 
11004 of this title. In the case of a second or subsequent violation. the 
amount of such penalty may be not more than $75,(){)(). 

2 U.S.C § 11045(b)(3). 

41. Under the DeIA and the Inflation Adjustment Rule the $25,000 

r day penally has been increased to $37,500 per day, and the $75,000 per 

y penalty for subsequent violations has been increased to $107,500 per day 

nder Section 325(b)(3) ofEPCRA as of January 2009. 

42. Defendant is liable for a penalty of$31,5oo for its failure to timely 

otify the SERe on February 11.2009. and is liable for a penalty of$107,500 

or its failure to timel)' notify the SERC on August 28, 2009. of releases of 

" I'o=<lous substances above the reportable quantity. 

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIn " n St.:CfJO:"i 112(r)(1} OF THE CLEAN AIR ACT 

24 43. PamgIllphs 1-9 are incorpomted herein by reference. 

25 44. Section 112(r)(7) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 1412(rX7) requires 

26 wnen and operators of stationary sources which use hazardous substances 

27 bove the regulatory threshold amounts to develop and file a Risk 

" 

•
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1anagement Plan r-RMP"') with EPA. 1be owner or operator of a stationary 

must submit an inilial RMP by the date on which a regulated 

ubstanee is first present at the facility above the lhreshold quantity in a 

rocess.40C.F.R.§68.150(b)(3). 

45. The Hayv.·ard Facility is a stationary source. "Stationary source" 

eans, in relevant part, "any buildings, structures, equipment, installations or 

ubstanee emining stationary activities...from which an 8CCidentCll releas<'
 

yoccur." Section 112(r)(2)(Q, 42 U.s.C. § 7412(r)(2)(C).
 

46. Defendant is an owner and operator of the Hayward Facilit)' which 

cs, stores, and uses anhydrous ammonia. 

47. Anhydrous ammonia is among the listed hazardous substances in 

0 C.F.R. Part 150. with a regulatory threshold amount of I0.000 pounds. 

48. Defendant acquired the Hayward Facility in March 2007 and shut 

own the refrigeration syslem, removing allllmmonia. Defendant initial1y 

started the system in June 2007 with a charge of approximately 8,000 

unds of ammonia. Defendant added 3,000 pounds of ammonia in 

ovember 2007. bringing the total charge to 11,000 pounds. but did not 

ubmit its initial R."tp for the Hay.....ard Facility until October 2008. at least 

II months late. 

49. The implementing regulations for Section 112(r)(7) of the CAA, 

2 U.S.C. § 74 I2(r)(7). require the owner or ope11ltor of a stationary source to 

rfonn a process hllZllrds analysis ("PHA~) to identifY, evaluate and control 

e hazards involved in the facility processes. The owner or opc11ltor must 

Iso establish a system to promptly address the findings and recommendations 

fthePHA.40C.F.R.§68.67(e). 

"
 

21 
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50. ~ Defendant had completed a PtlA in May of 2007, but as ofme 

pril2010 EPA inspection, Defendant had failed to establish an adequate 

ystem to promptly address !he twent)· recommendations from the May 2007 

HA. Some of those recommendations included labeling of piping, updating 

mergency procedures, retrofitting pipe and tank connections, documenting 

raining, and developing a system to deleCt ammonia releases on the roof from 

e opc'ration ofcompressor relief valves. 

51. The implementing regulations for Section 112(rX7) of the CAA, 

2 U.S.C. § 7412(rX71 require the owner or operator of a stationary source to 

velop and implement wrinen operating procedures that provide instructions 

steps for conducting ac;tiviti~ associated with a covered process. 

0 C.F.R. § 68.68. 

52. As of the April 2010 EPA inspection, Defendant's written 

perating procedures failed to provide clear instructions for the safc operation 

fthe refrigeration system. Moreover, the existing writlen operating 

nstructions were not readily accessible to employees because the 

frigeration contractor maintained these documenlS offsite. 

53. The implementing regulations for Section 112(rX7) of the CAA. 

2 U.S.c. § 74 I2(rX7), require the O\\T1er 01' operator of a station8f)' source to 

slablish and implement wrilletl procedures to maintain the ongoing integrity 

fthe process equipment. 40 C.F.R. § 68. neb). 

54. As of the April 20 I0 EPA inspection, Defendant had no written 

echanical integrity procedures. having relied on its refrigeration contractor 

0 conduci all mechanical integrity activities. 

55. Seclion 113(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b). as amended by 

8 U.S.C. § 2461 and 31 U.S.c. § 3701, provides that the Administrator of 

PA shall, in the case of a person .....hich is the owner or operator ofa major 

"
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·tationary source. and may, in the case of any other person, whene\'er such
 

rson violates any requirement or prohibition of Subchapter 1of the Act
 

'42 U.S.C. §§ 7401-7515). commence a civil action for injunctive relief and
 

0 assess and rttover a civil penalty of up 10 $27,500 per day for each such
 

iolation. 

56. Under the DeIA and the Inflation Adjuslmtnt Rule. Defendant is 

iable for assessment of a civil penally of up to $27,500 per day for each 

iolalion !hat occurred on or after January 31, 1997 lhrough March 15, 2004, 

P to $32,500 per day for each violation that occurred after March 15, 2004 

hrough January 12, 2009, and up to $37,500 per day for each violation that 

curred after January 12.2009. 

57. The defendant violated Seclion 112(rX7) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 

74 I2(rX7), cvcry day it failcd to have an RMI' in place; every day that it 

as wilhout an adequate system to promptly address the twenty 

commendations from the May 2007 PI-IA; every day rnal it failed to have 

n-site clear ....Titten instroctions for the safe operation of the refrigeration 

17 YSlem; and evcry day that il failed to ha\'c on-sitc written mechanical 

l' ntegrily procedures. 

fifTH CLAIM fOR REUEF" SECflON JI2 OF EPCRA 

58. Paragraphs 1-9 are incorporated herein by reference. 

59. Section 312 ofEPCRA requires that the o....ner or operator of a " 
ulated facility annuall)' submit completed hazardous ehemical inventOl'}' 

"
" 

orms to !he SERe. the LEPC and the fire department with jurisdiction over 

"
 
"
 
"
 

e facility if the amount of a hazardous chemical exceeds a minimum 

reshold level. The report is due by March I each year. 40 C.F.R. Pan 370. 

"
 



60. The hazMdous chemical in\'cntory fonns must contain infonnation 

2 the hazardous chemical including: the name, the: estimated maximum 

J 0001. the estimated average daily amounl, the manner of stOl1lge, the 

4 hemical location al the radlil)', and "helhCT the olo\,T1cr elects to withhold the 

s nfOfmation from public disclosure ("Tier II Information"). 

6 61. The minimum threshold level for an extn=e1y hazardous
 

7 'ubslance is cqua.llo the Threshold Planning Quantity ("1l'Q") listed in
 

• 0 C.F.R. Part 355, Appendices A &. B. 

9 62. "''hen Defendant restarted the Hayward Facility in June 2007. it
 

10 as storing approximately 8,000 pounds of anhydrous ammonia and it
 

It ontinued to store at [east that amount into 2008.
 

" 63. Anhydrous ammonia is a listed extremely hazardous substance 

" ith a TPQ of 100 pounds. 40 CFR Part 355, Appendices A & B. 

64. Defendant did not submit any Tier II Infonnalion to the San MllIeo " 
" ounty Department ofEnvironmentaJ Health, Ihe LEPC, for the calendar
 

" ears 2007 and 2008.
 

" 6S. Section 32S(b)(3) ofEPCRA provides as follows:
 

The AdminiSU"aIOf may bring an action in lhe United Stales District
 " court fOf the appropriate districllo assess and collect a penal!}' of 001
 

" 
more: Ihat $2S;uoo per day for each day during. which llie viollttion
 " conlinues in lhe case of11 violalion oHhe reqUIrements ofsection
 
11004 oflhis title.
 

21 2 U.S.C § II04S(bX3). 

22 66. Under the OClA and Ihe Inflation Adjustment Rule the $1S,OOO 

lJ I' day penalty under Sec.:lion 32S(b)(3) ofEPCRA has been increased to up 

2~ 0 $32,SOO per day for each violation thai occurred after March IS. 2004 

2) hrough January 12, 2009, and up to $37,SOO per day for each violation lhal 

26 cUrred after January 12,2009. 

" 
" 

"
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67. Defendanl is liable for I penalty of up 10 $32,500 per day from 

une 2007 through January 12,2009, and is liable for a penally of up 10 

7,500 per day for each day after January 12,2009, that il failed to provide
 

he LEPC wilh Ihe Tier II Information in hazardous chemical inventory fonns
 

or the Hayward Facility. 

HELlEI- SOUCHT 

REFORE, Plaintiff. the United Stales" respectfully pnIYs that this Court 

vide the following relief: 

I. Enjoin Defendant from operating the: Forbes Facility or the 

ayward ''-acilily. except in accordance with the Clean Air Act; with Section 

10] ofCERCLA; and with Seclions]04 and ]12 ofEPCRA. and w;lh 

mplemenling regulations under l'ach statute: 

2. Order Defendant to pay a civil penally for each day of each 

iolation of the Clean Air Act and the applicable regulations at both the 

orbes Facility and the l-iayward Facility of $27,500 per day for each 

iolation that (X;(:urre<! on or after January] I, 1997 through March 15.2004, 

32,500 per da)' for each violation that (X;(:urred aller M~h 15, 2004 

rough January 12,2009. and $37,500 per <fa)' for each violation that 

curred .fter January 12, 2009; 

]. Order DefcOOanI to pay Ii civil penalty of $37,500 for i~ failure 

0 timely notify the NRC on February 17,2009 ofa release; and 10 pay a civil 

nalty ofSI 07,500 for ils failure 10 limely notify the NRC on August 28, 

009 ofa release, with both releases related 10 Ihe Forbes Facilily; 

4. Order DefcndanllO pay a civil penally of$37,500 fOf its failure 

0 timely notify the SERC on February 17, 2009 ofa rel~se; and 10 pay a 

ivil penalty of$107.500 for its failure to timely nolify the SERC on August 

8,2009 of a release, with both releases relaled to the Forbes Faeility; 
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5. Order Defendanllo pay a civil penalty ofS32,500 per day from 

une 2007 through Janulll) 12.2009. and a penally ofS37,500 per day for 

ach day after JanuaJ)' 12, 2009, that it failed to provide the LEPC with the 

ier II Infomalion in hazardous chemical inventory forms for the Ilayward 

acility. 

6. Award the United Stales its costs of this action; and 

7. Grant the United States such further relief as this Court may 

rem just and proper. 

(JLta..r 
CHERYL L. SMOUT 
Environmental Enforcement Section 
Environment & Natural Resources 

Division 

fCounsel: 
lizabeth A. Cox 
PA Region 9 
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